
 
Virtual Meeting Access  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Greetings! 
 
For the safety and wellbeing of our members and employees, we would like to continue to hold meetings in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act, PA 267 of 1976, as amended. 
 
We have decided to use Microsoft Teams for video/phone conferencing for all upcoming board and alliance 
meetings. Teams has many exciting features including screen sharing, recording, live captions, file sharing, and 
more. Below are instructions on how to access the upcoming virtual meeting.  
 

   MICROSOFT TEAMS 

1. It is recommended to download the App -  
a. Apple Devices 
b. Android Devices  

 
2. Once you have downloaded the app, click here to access the Teams meeting.  

 
* Note: If you do not have a Microsoft account, you can join as a guest.  
 

Please note that you may provide comments during the meeting using the “chat” feature of Microsoft Teams; 
however, comments posted in that fashion may not be read or addressed until after the meeting. You may also 
provide input or ask questions of the Board relating to any items of business that will come before them at the 
meeting by emailing Tim Kelly at tkelly@downtowngr.org who will forward them to the Board, or by mailing them 
via regular U.S. Postal service to c/o Tim Kelly, Downtown Grand Rapids Inc., 29 Pearl NW, Suite 1, Grand 
Rapids, MI 49503, or by calling (616) 719-4610.  
 
Persons with disabilities may attend and participate using any of the above described methods. If you require 
special accommodations, please email asloan@downtowngr.org and we will be happy to accommodate you. If 
you have any questions or need further assistance, please email asloan@downtowngr.org.  
 

Join Microsoft Teams Meeting 

https://apps.apple.com/app/id1113153706?cmpid=downloadiOSGetApp&lm=deeplink&lmsrc=downloadPage
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.microsoft.teams&lm=deeplink&lmsrc=downloadPage&cmpid=downloadAndroidGetApp
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTg4ZWY2MWUtNDI5NS00ZWU2LWI0YWItOTMzMzU3ZmRhZjg0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22aa6673ac-3b79-4ed2-a894-169d7bcd1e96%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22399f74ca-cca1-46e9-9459-5aad879b5476%22%7d
mailto:tkelly@downtowngr.org
mailto:asloan@downtowngr.org
mailto:asloan@downtowngr.org
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTg4ZWY2MWUtNDI5NS00ZWU2LWI0YWItOTMzMzU3ZmRhZjg0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22aa6673ac-3b79-4ed2-a894-169d7bcd1e96%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22399f74ca-cca1-46e9-9459-5aad879b5476%22%7d


 
AGENDA 
 
 
MONROE 
NORTH  
TIFA 
 
Board Members: 
 
Jim Baldwin • Shaun Biel • Mayor Rosalynn Bliss • Elianna Bootzin • Diedre Deering • Kayem Dunn • Jane Gietzen • Carl Kelly • 
Mark Roys • Jim Talen • Rick Winn 
 

 
      

 
 
Wednesday, February 10, 2021 
10:00a.m. Meeting  
Microsoft Teams Virtual Meeting

 

 
 

1. Call to order 
 

2. Approve Meeting Minutes from June 10, 2020 (10:01)   Motion  Biel 
(enclosure) 
 

3. Approve January 31, 2021 Financials (10:05)    Motion  Chapman 
(enclosure) 
 

4. Presentation of the FY2020 Audit (10:10)     Motion  Chapman 
(enclosure) 
 

5. Monroe Avenue Crosswalk (10:20)     Motion  Miller 
(enclosure) 
 

6. Winter Ready Grant Support (10:30)     Motion   Miller  
(enclosure) 
 

7. DGRI President & CEO Report (10:40)     Info Item Kelly 
 

8. Public Comment (10:45) 
 

9. Board Member Discussion (10:50) 
 

10. Adjournment  

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YTg4ZWY2MWUtNDI5NS00ZWU2LWI0YWItOTMzMzU3ZmRhZjg0%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22aa6673ac-3b79-4ed2-a894-169d7bcd1e96%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22399f74ca-cca1-46e9-9459-5aad879b5476%22%7d


           UNAPPROVED MINUTES 
 

 
 

Meeting of the City of Grand Rapids Tax Increment Financing Authority 
June 10, 2020 

 
 
1. Call to Order –The meeting was called to order at 10:32 a.m. by Chair Shaun Biel. 
 
 Attendance            
 

Present: Jim Talen, Kayem Dunn, Shaun Biel, Diedre Deering, Jim Baldwin, Mark Roys, Jane Gietzen, 
Rick Winn, and Elianna Bootzin. 
 
Absent: Mayor Rosalynn Bliss and Carl Kelly  
 
Others Present: Tim Kelly (Executive Director), Amanda Sloan (MNTIFA Recording Secretary), Jana 
Wallace (MNTIFA Treasurer), Dick Wendt (Legal Counsel), Andy Guy, Melvin Eledge, Marion 
Bonneaux, Mark Miller, Samantha Suarez (DGRI), Kristin Bennett, and Isaac DeGraaf. 

 
2. Approve Meeting Minutes from April 8, 2020 

Motion: Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Dunn, moved approval of the minutes from the April 8, 2020 board 
meeting as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. Approve March 31, 2020 Financials   
 Ms. Wallace presented the financial statements for the first 9 months of the Authority’s fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2020 noting that the City Treasurer has distributed both summer and winter tax 
increment revenues, though we should expect a slight decrease in June 30 financials with the approval 
of pending assessment appeals.  

 
Motion: Ms. Gietzen, supported by Ms. Deering, moved to accept statement C Schedule of January 1 
through March 31, 2020 Expenditures as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
4. FY2021 Budget Adoption   
 Mr. Kelly stated the City Commission approved the MNTIFA Board recommended FY2021 Budget 

on April 28, 2020. The final step in the budget process is for the MNTIFA Board to adopt this budget.  
 



Monroe North TIFA 
Minutes –June 10, 2020 
Page 2 
 

Motion: Ms. Dunn, supported by Mr. Winn, moved to adopt the FY2021 Budget. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
5. DASH North Memorandum of Understanding   
 Mr. Biel the reminded group that the original DASH MOU dated back to December 2012 in an 

agreement with the City and the DDA to provide DASH shuttle service throughout downtown. Mr. 
Kelly added several route and schedule changes have occurred over time, but the DASH has proven 
to be an incredibly important service for Downtown over the last 8 years. He stated $80,000 has been 
budgeted for this service and is the amount being requested today. Ms. Deering asked of potential 
service changes this year. Mr. Kelly stated service was temporarily suspended but operations have 
resumed Monday – Saturday until 10 pm. Sunday service and (Thursday – Saturday) extended hour 
service will be reevaluated at a later date; the routes have not and will not change. 

 
Motion: Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Deering, moved to approve the MOU and extend contributions of 
$6,667 monthly to DASH service through June 30, 2021.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
6.  Bicycle Infrastructure Improvements 

Mr. Miller presented a list of recommended bicycle infrastructure improvements that have been 
budgeted for in FY20. The projects include on-street bicycle lane improvements at Monroe and 
Newberry as well as on Monroe from Ottawa to Coldbrook, the purchase of 50 bike racks, and the 
purchase and installation of a repair stand in Canal Street Park. He stated painting of the bike lanes will 
start very soon with completion at the end of June. The City plans to purchase and store the bike racks 
immediately for installation over the next year. Mr. Biel asked if these would be consistent with 
Streetspace guidelines. Mr. Miller confirmed they would.  
 
Motion: Mr. Talen, supported by Ms. Gietzen, moved to authorize funding in an amount not to exceed 
$50,000 for bicycle infrastructure improvements in Monroe North.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
7.  President & CEO Report 

Mr. Kelly stated social zones are being established throughout downtown, including one in Monroe 
North, to assist local business owners with expanded activation. Four zones are being finalized this 
week and will seek City approval soon thereafter. Womens Way Mural installation planning has started 
with completion expected in July. Also, DGRI has been working with building owners and artists to 
decorate the plywood installed over damaged windows in the recent civil unrest. The City has a goal to 
hire 1,000 community youth for summer work throughout the city including downtown. Please reach 
out if you are interested in learning more about the program. 

 
8. Public Comment 
 None. 

 
9.  Board Member Discussion  
 Ms. Gietzen thanked Tim and the team for their response to a very difficult time in our history.  
 
10. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 10:56 a.m. 



          
 
DATE:  February 3, 2021 
 
TO:  Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority 
 
FROM: Tricia Chapman 
  Administrative Services Officer II 
 
SUBJECT: FY2021 Interim Financial Statements Through January 31, 2021 
 
 
Attached are the Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority interim financial 
statements for the first seven months of the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.    
 
   Statement A:  Balance Sheet  
   Statement B:  FY2021 Statement of Revenues and Expenses  
   Statement C:  Schedule of July, 2020 through January, 2021 Expenditures 
 
The Authority’s balance sheet on Statement A indicates the Authority is in a strong position 
financially with sufficient Pooled Cash to support development plan expenditures for FY2021 
and beyond.   
 
The City Treasurer distributed summer tax increment revenues in September and winter tax 
increments in December, the Authoriy received just under $415,000. The Authority received 
nearly $135,000 from the State for revenues lost related to industrial and commercial personal 
property tax exemptions. 
 
The Authority has spent nearly $170,000 approximately 16% of its budget this fiscal year. The 
final payment on the 2008 Floodwall Debt issue was paid in October. 
 
Please contact me at 456-3848 or at tchapman@grcity.us if you have any questions. 
 
Attachments

mailto:tchapman@grcity.us


ASSETS
  Pooled Cash and Investments 2,471,919$     
  General Fixed Assets 1,486,800       
  Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (1,464,643)     

TOTAL ASSETS 2,494,076$     

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities
  Accounts Payable 34$                

TOTAL LIABILITIES 34$                

Fund Balance / Equity:
  Investments in General Fixed Assets 22,157$         
  Reserve for Compensated Absences 702                
  Reserve for Encumbrances 146                
  Reserve for Authorized Projects 2,471,037       

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 2,494,042$     

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND EQUITY 2,494,076$     

MONROE NORTH

STATEMENT A

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet

January 31, 2021



  

REVENUES Budget Actual
Property Tax Increment 393,900$     414,573$      

Property Tax Increment - Prior Year Appeals (5,000)         -               
State of Michigan - Personal Property Losses 127,411      134,479        1

Investments Earnings 26,921        (51,576)         
From / (To) Fund Balance 547,245      -               

TOTAL REVENUES 1,090,477$  497,476$      

EXPENSES
Committed and Ongoing

Contractual Services - Annual Audit 5,235$        -$             
Contractual Services - Legal 5,000          86                

Floodwalls Debt Service - Interest 834             744               
Floodwalls Debt Service - Principal 37,200        37,200          

General Fund Departments Services 27,192        15,862          
Insurance - General Liability 1,021          595               

Share of DGRI Administration 6,695          1,129            
Staff Support / Personnel 72,100        3,663            

Supplies 200             8                  
Sub-Total Committed and Ongoing 155,477$     59,287          

GR Forward Projects:
Goal #1:  Restore the River as the Draw and Create a Connected
  and Equitable River Corridor

Downtown Planning - GR Forward/River Governance 50,000$      22,328$        
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #1 50,000$      22,328$        

Goal #2:  Create a True Downtown Neighborhood Which is
  Home to a Diverse Population

District Enhancement Grants 50,000$      -               
Infrastructure Improvements - Miscellaneous 10,000        -               

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #2 60,000$      -$             

Goal #3:  Implement a 21st Century Mobility Strategy
Accessibility and Streetscape Improvement 50,000$      -$             

Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements 50,000        3,215            
Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstruction 250,000      38,103          

Women's Way Alley Improvements & Activation 25,000         -               
Transit Improvements in Monroe North District 150,000      46,669          

Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #3 525,000$     87,987$        

Goal #5:  Reinvest in Public Space, Culture, and Inclusive Programming
Canal Street Park Improvements 250,000$      42                

Urban Recreation Plan 50,000         -               
Sub-Total GR Forward - Goal #5 300,000$     42$               

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,090,477$  169,644$      

EXCESS / (DEFICIT) -$            327,832$      

Note 1: State of Michigan reimbursement for the tax increment revenue losses related to
State-mandated industrial and commercial personal property exemptions.  For FY2017,
$108,171 was reimbursed.  For FY2018, $122,248, for FY2019,  $129,325, and for 
FY2020 $131,532.   

STATEMENT B

FY2021

MONROE NORTH
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY

FY2021 Statement of Revenues and Expenses
July 1, 2020 - January 31, 2021 



 
 

Date
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

10/20/2020 County of Kent Series 2008 Floodwalls Bonds Floodwalls debt service - annual principal paid 37,200.00$   
8/4/2020 PK Contracting, Inc Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Pavement markings Monroe, Newberry, & Coldbrook 35,589.00     

1/18/2021 Kamminga & Roodvoets INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason-Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 22,505.00     
11/1/2020 HR&A Advisors, Inc. GR Forward/River Governance River Guidance consulting services 04/16/2020 - 06/30/202 7,928.06       
1/14/2021 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason/Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 7,373.98       

12/20/2020 Kathy Blaha Consulting, LLC GR Forward/River Governance Grand River Governance consulting 12/20 7,200.00       
9/21/2020 Kathy Blaha Consulting, LLC GR Forward/River Governance Grand River Governance consulting 9/20 7,200.00       

10/28/2020 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Oct 2020 MNTIFA Share Of DASH North Service 6,667.00       
11/24/2020 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Nov 2020 MNTIFA Share Of DASH North Service 6,667.00       
12/16/2020 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Dec 2020 MNTIFA Share Of DASH North Service 6,667.00       
1/13/2021 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Jan 2021 MNTIFA Share Of DASH North Service 6,667.00       
8/5/2020 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements July 2020 MNTIFA Share of DASH North Services 6,667.00       
9/2/2020 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Aug 2020 MNTIFA Share of DASH North Services 6,667.00       

9/24/2020 City Treasurer - MobileGR/Parking Transit Improvements Sept 2020 MNTIFA Share of DASH North Services 6,667.00       
1/14/2021 Kamminga & Roodvoets INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason-Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 5,800.00       
10/5/2020 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       
11/4/2020 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       

12/11/2020 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       
1/19/2021 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       
1/21/2021 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       
7/31/2020 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       
8/1/2020 City Treasurer - Budget Office General Fund Departments Services IET - Operating Transfer A-87 2,266.00       

12/30/2020 Everlast Climbing Industries, Inc. Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Bike Racks and supplies 2,020.00       
1/14/2021 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason/Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 1,551.17       
9/5/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 09/05/2020 998.89         

7/11/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 07/11/2020 756.39         
10/20/2020 County of Kent Series 2008 Floodwalls Bonds Floodwalls debt service - semi-annual interest 744.00         
8/20/2020 Fastenal (MIGR1) Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Bicycle stand repairs 06/20 649.83         
8/20/2020 Fastenal (MIGR1) Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Bicycle stand repairs 06/20 528.56         
1/14/2021 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason/Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 354.66         
8/20/2020 Thomas Jack Tilma Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Cycling infrastructure planning & repairs 6/2020 349.46         

12/26/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/26/2020 333.11         
9/19/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 09/19/2020 319.23         
1/14/2021 Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason/Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 281.86         
1/18/2021 Kamminga & Roodvoets INC Mason Street / Ottawa Avenue Reconstr 18074-Mason-Fairview Ave Recon-MNTIFA share 236.35         
10/3/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 10/03/2020 225.11         

12/12/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 12/12/2020 177.24         
11/1/2020 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance Nov 2020 117.95         

12/13/2020 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance Dec 2020 117.70         
1/4/2021 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance Jan 2020 117.70         

10/7/2020 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance OCT 2020 117.45         
8/30/2020 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance SEPT 2020 113.10         
1/19/2021 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 01/2021 93.32           

10/12/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 10/2020 91.49           
11/17/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 11/2020 91.49           
12/13/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 12/2020 91.49           
7/19/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 7/2020 91.49           
8/10/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 8/2020 91.49           
9/8/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street 9/2020 91.49           

10/5/2020 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           
11/4/2020 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           

12/11/2020 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           
1/19/2021 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           
7/31/2020 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           
8/1/2020 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           
9/1/2020 City Treasurer - Risk Mnmt Insurance - General Liability Monthly General Insurance Allocation 85.00           
8/2/2020 Priority Health Staff Support / Personnel Health Insurance August 2020 79.17           

1/23/2021 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 01/23/2021 74.04           
1/9/2021 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 01/09/2021 37.02           

9/14/2020 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Supplies 36.79           
10/18/2020 Encompass LLC Share of DGRI Administration Annual EAP Billing 11/04/2020-11/3/2021 34.72           
1/31/2021 Blue Cross Blue Shield of MI Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 11/20 - 02/21 34.18           
12/2/2020 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal Legal services: 10/20 DGRI Board of Advisors 34.10           
8/8/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 08/08/2020 33.94           

7/25/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 07/25/2020 33.89           

continued on the next page

STATEMENT C

MONROE NORTH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AUTHORITY
Schedule of Expenditures

July 1, 2020 Through January 31, 2021  



 

STATEMENT C - continued
Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
July 1, 2020 Through January 31, 2021  Page 2

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

Continued from previous page
8/22/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 08/22/2020 33.89$         

12/20/2020 International Downtown Association Share of DGRI Administration membership dues 2022 32.31           
10/12/2020 Fifth Third Bank Canal Street Park Improvements Canal Park Improvements 27.65           
7/19/2020 Blue Cross Blue Shield of MI Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 8/20-10/20 25.29           
1/13/2021 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal Legal services: 11/20 DGRI Board of Advisors 22.64           
8/30/2020 Hub International Midwest Limited Share of DGRI Administration Directors and Officers Policy 11/2019-11/2020 21.17           

10/31/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 10/31/2020 17.73           
11/14/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 11/14/2020 17.73           
11/28/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 11/28/2020 17.00           
1/26/2021 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 01/21 16.45           

10/18/2020 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 11/1/20 to 11/30/20 16.36           
11/29/2020 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 12/20 16.36           
7/29/2020 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 8/1/20 - 8/31/20 16.36           
8/24/2020 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 9/1/20 to 9/30/20 16.36           
9/29/2020 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 10/1/20 - 10/31/20 16.36           

12/14/2020 TGG, Inc. Staff Support / Personnel Life & S/T & L/T disability insurance - 01/21 16.26           
9/29/2020 ACO Inc Canal Street Park Improvements Fish Mural at Canal Park supplies 09/20 14.39           
10/4/2020 The Hartford Staff Support / Personnel Workers Compensation 09/23/2020-09/23/2021 13.57           
11/1/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services Agreement Oct 2020 12.86           

11/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services Agreement Nov 2020 12.86           
12/28/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services Agreement Jan 2021 12.86           
8/24/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services Agreement Sept 2020 12.86           
9/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services Agreement Oct 2020 12.86           

12/21/2020 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal Legal Services 11/20 12.55           
7/20/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services Hybrid Agreement 7/20 11.94           

12/20/2020 GR Area Chamber of Commerce Share of DGRI Administration membership dues 2021 9.30             
1/13/2021 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal BBB agreement for Uptown Corridor 9.00             
11/3/2020 United States Treasurery Staff Support / Personnel IRS 2018 Form 5500 Adjustment 12/2018 9.00             

10/18/2020 Blue Cross Blue Shield of MI Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 11/20 8.54             
11/29/2020 Blue Cross Blue Shield of MI Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 11/20 8.54             

9/8/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT: UPS battery 8/20 8.31             
1/19/2021 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 01/2021 7.59             

10/12/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 10/2020 7.44             
11/17/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 11/2020 7.44             
12/13/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 12/2020 7.44             

8/5/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 07/2020 7.44             
8/10/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 08/2020 7.44             
9/8/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Office Lease: 29 Pearl Street Mezzanine Office 09/2020 7.44             

12/14/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services NOV 2016 6.51             
7/20/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services Computer Repair 7/20 6.28             

12/13/2020 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 11/20 5.97             
11/1/2020 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 10/20 5.74             
12/2/2020 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 11/20 5.74             
1/4/2021 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 12/20 5.74             

8/30/2020 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 8/20 5.73             
9/29/2020 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 9/20 5.73             

11/18/2020 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 10/2020 5.70             
11/1/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT support services Sept 2020 5.44             

10/12/2020 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 9/20 5.42             
12/2/2020 MVP Sportsplex - GR, LLC Staff Support / Personnel Gym membership dues 11/20 4.89             

11/22/2020 Selective Insurance Company of Americ Share of DGRI Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for DDA 2020 4.84             
12/20/2020 Selective Insurance Company of Americ Share of DGRI Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for DDA 12/20 4.84             
8/24/2020 Selective Insurance Co of America Share of DGRI Administration Liability Insurance Endorsement for 2020 4.74             
8/2/2020 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 07/20 4.57             

8/30/2020 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal Legal services: 7/20 BBB agreement 4.36             
9/29/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric SEPT 2020 4.13             
11/1/2020 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 10/20 4.10             
11/9/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MS office Agreement 8/17-9/16/2020 4.07             

11/24/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MS office Agreement 9/17-10/16/2020 4.07             
1/4/2021 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MS office Agreement 10/17 - 11/16/2020 4.07             
8/2/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MS office Agreement 5/17-6/16/2020 4.07             

8/30/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MS office Agreement 5/17-6/16/2020 4.07             
9/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration MS office Agreement 7/17-8/16/2020 4.07             

12/2/2020 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 11/20 4.06             
12/28/2020 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 12/20 3.86             

continued on the next page



 

STATEMENT C - continued
Monroe North Tax Increment Financing Authority
Schedule of Expenditures
July 1, 2020 Through January 31, 2021  Page 3

Date Activity #
Posted Vendor Purpose / Project Description Amount

Continued from previous page
8/30/2020 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 08/20 3.86$           
9/29/2020 GreatAmerica Financial Services Corp Share of DGRI Administration Copier Lease 08/20 3.86             
9/8/2020 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 8/20 3.80             
12/11/2020 Fifth Third Bank Supplies Admin: Supplies 3.69             
8/2/2020 Metro FiberNet, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Internet/Phone at 29 Pearl St NW 7/20 3.43             
8/10/2020 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 7/20 3.26             
11/24/2020 Breck Graphics INC Share of DGRI Administration Ambassador Cards and Business Cards: Krenz & Doyle 11 3.17             
12/21/2020 Dickinson Wright PLLC Contractual Services - Legal Legal Services 11/20 3.00             
8/2/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services 7/20 2.93             
12/14/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 11/20 2.64             
1/4/2021 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 12/20 2.64             
8/10/2020 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 7/2020 2.64             
1/24/2021 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 01/21 2.45             
10/12/2020 Fifth Third Bank Supplies Admin- Office Supplies 2.40             
11/9/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 10/20 2.38             
9/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 9/20 2.38             
8/10/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 7/20 2.35             
9/8/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT network services 8/20 2.35             
7/29/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric June 2020 2.29             
12/14/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services SEPT 2016 2.17             
7/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services 7/20 2.09             
8/24/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric July 2020 2.09             
11/9/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT: laptop battery 10/20 2.08             
11/29/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric Nov 2020 1.86             
12/28/2020 Federal Square Building Co. #1, LLC Share of DGRI Administration Utility Service: Electric Dec 2020 1.81             
11/10/2020 Fifth Third Bank Supplies Admin Supplies 1.81             
7/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT: laptop battery 7/20 1.74             
7/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT: laptop hard drive 7/20 1.69             
1/10/2021 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 12/20 1.63             
11/9/2020 HR Collaborative LLC Share of DGRI Administration HR Consultant services 10/20 1.62             
10/26/2020 Pure Water Partners LLC Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 10/20 1.56             
1/24/2021 Pure Water Partners LLC Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 01/21 1.56             
7/29/2020 Pure Water Partners LLC Share of DGRI Administration Water Cooler Lease 7/20-9/20 1.56             
10/12/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services SEPT 2020 1.41             
11/1/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services NOV 2020 1.41             
12/14/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services NOV 2020 1.41             
1/10/2021 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services DEC 2020 1.41             
8/10/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services JULY 2020 1.41             
9/14/2020 Professional Maintenance of Michigan InShare of DGRI Administration Janitorial services JULY 2020 1.41             
12/14/2020 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 11/2020 1.35             
1/10/2021 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 12/2020 1.35             
9/14/2020 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 8/2020 1.35             
1/19/2021 Amanda Sloan Share of DGRI Administration Gift Card reimb 01/2021 1.24             
10/12/2020 Engineered Protection Sys INC Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 11/01/20 - 01/31/2021 1.15             
1/10/2021 Engineered Protection Sys INC Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 2/1/2021 - 4/30/21 1.15             
7/19/2020 Engineered Protection Sys Inc Share of DGRI Administration Office Security System 8/1/20 - 10/31/20 1.15             
12/20/2020 Littlefoot Coffee Roasters Share of DGRI Administration Office Supplies 12/20 0.88             
1/13/2021 City of Grand Rapids - Petty Cash Share of DGRI Administration DGRI BOA Meeting Supplies 09/2019 0.84             
10/12/2020 Cellco Partnership Share of DGRI Administration Cell Phone Service 9/2020 0.76             
11/9/2020 Model Coverall Service INC Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 10/20 0.58             
1/10/2021 Model Coverall Service INC Share of DGRI Administration Floor Mat Rental 12/20 0.58             
10/18/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services backupify Agreement Oct 2020 0.56             
11/18/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services backupify Agreement NOV 2020 0.56             
7/20/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT Services Backup Agreement 7/20 0.56             
8/24/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services backupify Agreement Aug 2020 0.56             
9/20/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services backupify Agreement Sept 2020 0.56             
1/26/2021 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services backupify Agreement Jan 2021 0.47             
12/20/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration IT services backupify Agreement DEC 2020 0.45             
9/14/2020 Fifth Third Bank Share of DGRI Administration Admin: Licensing 0.25             
10/29/2020 The KR Group, Inc. Share of DGRI Administration Credit Memo (2.72)            
1/26/2021 Blue Cross Blue Shield of MI Staff Support / Personnel Dental Insurance Premium 11/20 - Void Check (8.54)            
1/22/2021 Fastenal (MIGR1) Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Credit Memo (166.26)        
1/22/2021 Fastenal (MIGR1) Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Credit Memo (166.26)        
10/17/2020 City of Grand Rapids Staff Support / Personnel Payroll period ended 10/17/2020 & corrections (284.82)        
7/1/2020 PK Contracting, Inc Bicycle Instrastructure Improvements Reversed accrual for svcs performed in FY2020 (35,589.00)    

TOTAL JULY 2020 - JANUARY 2021 EXPENDITURES 169,644.31$ 













































MEMORANDUM 

 

 
MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 
 
 
 
DATE: February 5, 2021 
 
TO: Monroe North TIFA 
 
FROM: Mark Miller, Managing Director of Planning + Design 
 
SUBJECT: Pedestrian Safety Improvements – Monroe Avenue Crosswalk   
 
Goal 3 of GR Forward identifies providing a stress-free pedestrian experience for all ages and abilities (page 186) 
as a foundational element toward implementing a 21st century mobility strategy.  The Plan further recommends 
prioritizing pedestrian safety and connectivity (page 187) through a series of actions that include: 

 Pedestrian refuge islands and raised medians. 

 Replacing two-line crosswalks with continental crosswalks. 

 Developing a system for pedestrian safety improvements that emphasizes connection to transit nodes 
and activity generators. 

 

Monroe Community Church (MCC) purchased the building at 1021 Ottawa Ave NW and will be moving into 
the space in the fall of 2021. As part of a variety of projects to transform the building and site, MCC has worked 
to implement a crosswalk at Monroe Avenue to connect the building to Canal Street Park and the Grand River.  
This pedestrian safety improvement is necessitated by MCC’s plan to have childcare within the building.  The 
childcare will require open space and play area, and since the site does not have space for that, the church plans 
to use Canal Street Park.  The crosswalk is a required connection in order to ensure the safety of those vulnerable 
users. 

To this end, MCC has worked with Progressive AE and the City of Grand Rapids to design a new crosswalk at 
Monroe Avenue that makes use of the existing median.  This design has been approved by the City, and MCC 
has a contractor that can do the work as part of their project site work, beginning this spring. 

The project will include modification and extension of the existing median to provide a pedestrian refuge space, 
an accessible route from public sidewalk to public sidewalk, tactile warning surfaces, and a painted crosswalk. 

This area of North Monroe lacks official crosswalks, with the closest one to the north at Ottawa, Coldbrook, and 
Monroe; and the closest one to the south about ¼ of a mile away at Mason Street.  This improvement will not 
only benefit the church, but also park-goers from the residences and businesses withing this general area.  

Agenda Item #05 
February 10, 2021 
MNTIFA Meeting 



 
 

The project’s estimated cost is $21,000. DGRI also typically recommends adding 10% contingencies to 
construction projects, which in this case would add $2,000 to the estimated cost.  DGRI recommends providing 
full investment of this project in an amount of not to exceed $23,000 to continue implementation of GR Forward. 
Since the Monroe Community Church will be paying the contractor, this funding will be paid to them to facilitate 
the project.    

The MNTIFA FY21 budget includes a line item that appropriated $50,000 for Streetscape Improvements.  This 
funding will come from this line item.  
 
Recommendation: Authorize funding in an amount not to exceed $23,000 for pedestrian safety improvements 
in MNTIFA.  



MONROE 
COMMUNITY 
CHURCH

AREA OF CROSSWALK CONSTRUCTION

AREA OF CROSSWALK CONSTRUCTION CONTEXT

AREA OF CROSSWALK CONSTRUCTION CONTEXT



THE UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN FOR NATURAL
GAS (GAS), TELEPHONE (TEL), ELECTRICAL POWER (PWR),
CABLE  TV  (CTV)  AND  FIBER  OPTIC  LINES  (FIBER)  ARE
APPROXIMATE.  THE CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS ASSUMES NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR ACCURATE REPRESENTATION
IN THIS DRAWING.  MISS DIG MUST BE CONTACTED PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION TO LOCATE THESE UTILITIES. 22NO. DESCRIPTION

N
O

R
TH

REVISIONS

DATE

REMOVAL  LEGEND

7.3
'

21
.1'

10.7'

RECONSTRUCTION  LEGEND

RECONSTRUCTION  PLANREMOVAL PLAN

M
O

NR
O

E 
AV

E.
 N

W

M
O

NR
O

E 
AV

E.
 N

W

CROSSWALK DETAIL

ALL CROSSWALKS SHALL BE THE
"CONTINENTAL" 12" WET REFLECTIVE

AND RECESSED POLYUREA.

SIDEWALK GRADING PLAN

CONSTRUCTION
OF

CROSSWALK
ON

MONROE AVE NW
AT 1021 OTTAWA AVE.

DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE 24"
ACROSS FULL WIDTH IF MEDIAN WIDTH

IS AT LEAST 6'-0". OTHERWISE NO
DETECTABLE WARNING IS REQUIRED.

CURB RAMP TYPE M
(MEDIAN ISLAND)

MEDIAN WIDTH

5' MIN



THE UNDERGROUND LOCATIONS SHOWN FOR NATURAL
GAS (GAS), TELEPHONE (TEL), ELECTRICAL POWER (PWR),
CABLE  TV  (CTV)  AND  FIBER  OPTIC  LINES  (FIBER)  ARE
APPROXIMATE.  THE CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS ASSUMES NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THEIR ACCURATE REPRESENTATION
IN THIS DRAWING.  MISS DIG MUST BE CONTACTED PRIOR
TO CONSTRUCTION TO LOCATE THESE UTILITIES. 22NO. DESCRIPTION

N
O

R
TH

REVISIONS

DATE

REMOVAL  LEGEND

7.3
'

21
.1'

10.7'

RECONSTRUCTION  LEGEND

RECONSTRUCTION  PLANREMOVAL PLAN

M
O

NR
O

E 
AV

E.
 N

W

M
O

NR
O

E 
AV

E.
 N

W

CROSSWALK DETAIL

ALL CROSSWALKS SHALL BE THE
"CONTINENTAL" 12" WET REFLECTIVE

AND RECESSED POLYUREA.

SIDEWALK GRADING PLAN

CONSTRUCTION
OF

CROSSWALK
ON

MONROE AVE NW
AT 1021 OTTAWA AVE.

DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE 24"
ACROSS FULL WIDTH IF MEDIAN WIDTH

IS AT LEAST 6'-0". OTHERWISE NO
DETECTABLE WARNING IS REQUIRED.

CURB RAMP TYPE M
(MEDIAN ISLAND)

MEDIAN WIDTH

5' MIN



MEMORANDUM 

 

 
MONROE 
NORTH 
TIFA 
 
 
DATE: February 8, 2021 
 
TO: Monroe North TIFA 
 
FROM: Mark Miller, Managing Director of Planning + Design 
 
SUBJECT: Winter Ready Grant Allocations 
 
At its October 14, 2020 meeting the DDA authorized the Winter Ready Grant and seeded it with $200,000 to 
continue support of Downtown businesses during the COVID-19 recovery.  The grant intended to assist 
businesses in winterization efforts related to outdoor seating, activation, and related expansion of business activity 
in the public realm.  The program provides recipients with funds to purchase winterization materials such as 
canopies, tents, heaters, and lighting to maintain their operations during the winter months. 

Subsequently, on December 9, 2020, the DDA authorized an additional $175,000 for the Winter Ready Grant, 
bringing the total available grant amount to $375,000.  On February 10, an additional amount of $250,000 will 
be requested from the DDA for grant funding, bringing the overall total authorization to a not to exceed amount 
of $625,000. 

As of February 5, 2021, a total of $300,000 of funding support for wintertime outdoor seating within Downtown 
Grand Rapids has been dispersed.  Additionally, another $42,000 has been committed and is to be paid once 
the seating structures have been installed, for a total committed amount of $342,000.  It is anticipated that 
another 15-20 businesses will be requesting grant funding, that could add another $250,000 to $275,000 to the 
dispersed funding for a total of $600,000 to $625,000. 

To date, 23 businesses have been funded and 21 businesses have functioning structures on the ground. A total 
of 74 structures and 66 heaters have been installed within the DDA footprint.  At the time of this writing, it is 
anticipated that another 3-4 businesses will have structures up next week.   

Of those businesses, five are in the MNTIFA – Sandy Point Beach House, City Built Brewing Company, Linear, 
Field & Fire, and Garage Bar.  DGRI recommends that the MNTIFA allocate funds to cover these five businesses 
as part of the Winter Ready Grant. 

Three of these businesses have already been funded by the DDA and have received their grant money: 
1. City Built: $26,000 
2. Linear: $10,062 
3. Field & Fire: $10,000 

 
For a total amount of $46,062 to be reimbursed to the DDA. 
 
The other two businesses have yet to be funded: 

1. Sandy Point Beach House: $20,000 
2. Garage Bar: 20,000 

Agenda Item #06 
February 10, 2021 
MNTIFA Meeting 



 
 

For a total amount of $40,000 and an overall amount of $86,062. 
 
As part of the DDA’s procedures for funding, any amount over $15,000 needs to be approved by the board; 
therefore, it is recommended that the board specifically approve both Sandy Point Beach House and Garage Bar 
for $20,000 each. 

Additionally, the DDA has also authorized that a company called Prestige Products be paid directly on behalf of 
businesses in an effort to remove up-front costs for businesses and expedite the delivery process.  In this case, 
Sandy Point Beach House will be using this mechanism, with their funding being paid directly to Prestige 
Products.  It is recommended that the board approve this procedure. 

 

Recommendations: 

Authorize reimbursement to DDA for three previously funded businesses in the amount of $46,062. 

Authorize grant funding for two businesses in the amount of $40,000. 

Approve funding in excess of the $15,000 threshold to Sandy Point Beach House and Garage Bar - $20,000 
each. 

Authorize direct payment to Prestige Products in the amount of $20,000 on behalf of Sandy Point Beach 
House. 

 

 

 

 

 




